
Shropshire Council
Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Date:   Tuesday, 8 March 2016

Committee: 
Cabinet

Date: Wednesday, 16 March 2016
Time: 12.30 pm
Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. 
The Agenda is attached

Claire Porter
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)

Members of Cabinet Deputy Members of Cabinet
Malcolm Pate (Leader)
Steve Charmley (Deputy Leader)
Karen Calder
Lee Chapman
Simon Jones
David Minnery
Cecilia Motley
Malcolm Price
Stuart West
Michael Wood

Peter Adams
Tim Barker
Nicholas Bardsley
Gwilym Butler
Dean Carroll
Robert Macey
Peter Nutting
Robert Tindall

Your Committee Officer is: 

Jane Palmer  Senior Democratic Services Officer
Tel:  01743 257712
Email:  jane.palmer@shropshire.gov.uk



AGENDA
1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting on any 
matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave the room 
prior to the commencement of the debate.

3 Minutes 

To approve as a correct record and sign the Minutes of the ordinary and Special Cabinet 
meetings held on 10 and 17 February 2016 respectively.  Attached, marked 3. TO 
FOLLOW.

Contact: Jane Palmer 01743 257712

4 Public Questions 

To receive any public questions or petitions from the public, notice of which has been 
given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  The deadline for this meeting is 5.00pm on 
Friday 11 March 2016.

5 Matters Referred from Scrutiny/Council 

6 Redesign of Visitor Information Services in North West Shropshire (Pages 1 - 22)

Lead Member – Mr Stuart West – Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture.

Report of the Director of Commissioning is attached, marked 6.

Contact: George Candler 01743 255003

7 Application by Burford and Tenbury Wells [Malvern Hills District Council] Parish 
Councils to be considered as a Neighbourhood Plan Area (Pages 23 - 32)

Lead Member – Mr Mal Price – Portfolio Holder for Planning, Housing, Regulatory 
Services and Environment.

Report of the Director of Commissioning is attached, marked 7.

Contact: George Candler 01743 255003

8 The Provision and Support to Refugees and Asylum Seekers in Shropshire (Pages 
33 - 40)

Lead Member – Mr Mal Price – Portfolio Holder for Planning, Housing, Regulatory 
Services and Environment.

Report of the Interim Director of Adult Services is attached, marked 8.

Contact: Andy Begley 01743 252421



9 Exclusion of Press and Public 

To resolve that in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and Paragraph 10.2 of the Council’s Access to Information Rules, 
the public and press be excluded during consideration of the remaining items.

10 Exempt Minutes 

To approve as a correct record and sign the exempt Minutes of the ordinary and Special 
Cabinet meetings held on 10 and 17 February 2016 respectively.  Attached marked 10. 
TO FOLLOW

Contact: Jane Palmer 01743 257712





Committee and Date

Cabinet

Date 16th March 2016 

RE-DESIGN OF VISITOR INFORMATION SERVICES
 IN NORTH-WEST SHROPSHIRE

Responsible Officer  George Candler, Director of Commissioning
e-mail: George.candler@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 255003   

1.0 Summary

1.1 This report provides background on the re-design of Visitor Information Services in North-
West Shropshire.
 

1.2 Shropshire Council is working with partners to re-design existing face to face Visitor 
Information Services, to create places where visitors and local residents can easily get 
information and advice that both helps them and contributes to the wider tourism economy of 
the county. This is to help us to create and maintain resilient facilities at a time of reducing 
public service budgets.

1.3 The proposal is to decommission the Visitor Information Centre at Mile End Service Area 
near Oswestry and commission Oswestry Borderland Tourism Association to deal with 
enquiries from visitors by email, telephone and post. Alternative sources of information for 
personal callers would be signposted from the Service Area.

1.4 Cabinet agreement is sought to implement the proposal outlined above.

2.0 Recommendation

It is recommended:

2.1
a) That the Visitor Information Centre at Mile End Service Area is decommissioned as soon as 
possible;
b) That the Council endeavours to hand back the lease to the landlord in a condition that meets the 
requirements of the lease; although there is no provision for an early surrender therefore this would 
be subject to negotiation.
c) That a display board is erected on the site to guide visitors to other sources of information; 
d) That Oswestry Borderland Tourism Association be commissioned via a three year Contract for 
Services to deal with enquiries from visitors by email, telephone and post.



 e) And to delegate to the Director of Commissioning in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Culture and Leisure, responsibility to take any further decisions and actions to implement the 
recommendations  
              REPORT

3.0  Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 The recommendations contained within this report are compatible with the   provisions of the 
Human Rights Act, 1998.

To assess the impact of the proposals on groups with Protected Characteristics and social inclusion 
a Shropshire Equality and Social Inclusion Impact Assessment (ESIIA) was completed and is 
appended at Appendix A to this report.

Two consultation exercises have been carried out: firstly to ascertain if there was an organisation 
that wished to continue to deliver the Visitor Information Service at the current Mile End site and 
secondly to ask users and stakeholders for their views on the proposed new arrangements for 
delivering the service. The consultations are discussed in more detail in section 6.0 and in Appendix 
B and C.

4.0      Financial Implications

4.1 The net running cost for the Visitor Information Centre in 2014-15 was £35,995, excluding central 
support services costs.  This year’s net controllable budget is £22,660, although the outturn 
controllable cost is likely to be approximately £30,000.

4.2 The proposal to commission Oswestry Borderland Tourism Association to deal with email, post and 
telephone enquiries will cost £4,000 in year one, £3,000 in year two and £1,000 in year three. This 
would generate an annual saving on current controllable budget of £18,660 from the outset of the 
agreement.  

4.3 Transition costs will include the cost of staff redundancies and any costs of returning the premises 
to the condition required under the lease.  If the landlord was to submit a dilapidations claim, 
following agreement to hand back the building, it is likely to be in the region of £20,000. The actual 
figure would depend on the future use of the building and would be lower if the landlord did not 
require all of the fittings to be removed.  Any dilapidations cost would need to be met within 
Commissioning’s 2016/17 revenue budget.  

4.4 The provision of a new display board on the site to advise personal callers will cost up to £2,000. 
This cost will be met from 2016/17 service area revenue budgets.  

5.0      Background

5.1 During 2015, Shropshire Council, with key local partners has been discussing new ways of 
delivering the Visitor Information Services in north-west Shropshire where the Council currently 
operates the Oswestry Mile End Visitor Information Centre on the service area next to the A5 trunk 
road. An initial soft market testing exercise was undertaken during July. Some interest was 
expressed in providing information services to visitors in the area but not on the current site.

5.2 The Oswestry Mile End VIC is run by the Library Service and is open 5 days a week providing a 
range of visitor services including free and saleable information leaflets and books, souvenirs, bed 
booking facility and also answers enquiries by post, phone and email. It provides services to less 
than 30,000 visitors per year, a significant decrease on the peak number of 76,000 in 2008.



           The office is rented from the landlord and the Council covers other costs such as business rates, 
staffing, energy and the costs of supplies for re-sale.

The Council owns the freehold of the Mile End site and leaseback the VIC, on a lease with 96 years 
left to run, at a peppercorn rent. The lease restricts the user to the VIC and states we are to hand 
back in the same condition as at the start of the lease. 

The current landlord is a property trustee company in Jersey, previously Travel Lodge Hotels Ltd. 
The Council will have to enter a dialogue to hand the lease back.  There is currently no provision 
within the existing lease to allow the building to be handed back so an early surrender can only 
progress by mutual agreement. There may be a dilapidations cost depending on the Landlord’s 
future intentions.

5.3 Visitor Information is available at the Heritage Centre in the town centre next to St. Oswald’s 
Church. It is open all year, Monday to Saturday and deals with enquiries in person, by letter, email 
and telephone. The service is operated with paid staff by Oswestry Borderland Tourism Ltd.

5.4 Local tourist attractions and accommodation providers offer information services to their customers 
including free leaflets and assistance by staff. Increasingly visitors are using smart phones and 
portable computers such as i-pads to access information. 71% of UK residents have access to an 
internet connected mobile phone. Popular websites for this part of Shropshire are provided by 
Oswestry Borderlands Tourism Ltd, Shropshire Tourism and Virtual Shropshire in addition to 
national sites like TripAdvisor and many others.

5.5 The main recommendation for the future delivery of Visitor Information Services in north-west 
Shropshire is to transfer the responsibility for enquiries by personal callers, email, telephone and 
post to Oswestry Borderland Tourism Ltd at the Heritage Centre and to decommission the facility at 
the Mile End Service area.  

           An area and town map information board would be provided at the Mile End Service Area 
promoting the availability of local Visitor Information Services in Oswestry and at nearby tourist 
attractions. The board would include the telephone number of Oswestry Heritage Centre VIC, local 
websites, local visitor amenities and other helpful information.  This would result in the service 
continuing to be delivered in north-west Shropshire but at a reduced cost to the Council.  A Service 
Level Agreement with Oswestry Borderland Tourism Ltd would provide financial support to provide 
Visitor Information Services to remote enquirers by email, phone and post for a period of three 
years. 

6.0      Consultation

During the summer of 2015 a soft market testing exercise was undertaken to see if any organisation 
wished to take over the management of the service on its current site. None came forward but one 
business did express an interest in providing an enhanced visitor information facility on its site 
adjacent to the A5 trunk road.

A further consultation was conducted in the autumn/winter from mid-November to late December 
via the Council’s website, with printed questionnaires available from the Mile End VIC and the 
Heritage Centre in Oswestry Town Centre. 26 responses were received with 27% of respondents in 
favour of the Council’s principal proposal and 73% against. The full text of responses can be found 
in Appendix C. 



The public were asked to respond to 2 questions:

Q1: Preferred option: To transfer the responsibility for dealing with enquiries from visitors and local 
residents by telephone, email and post to Oswestry Borderlands Tourism Ltd which will run the 
service under a 3 year Service Level Agreement. The current Oswestry Mile End Visitor Information 
Centre will close and the office handed back to the landlord. A map display board will help to 
orientate visitors and inform them of local information services provided at Oswestry Heritage 
Centre and local visitor attractions. Details of telephone numbers and websites will be displayed 
together with full details of local attractions and other services. Do you
agree with this option?

A total of 26 responses were made to the ‘preferred option’: 7 respondents agreed with the 
preferred option and 19 disagreed.

The majority of the consultation respondents who disagreed with the preferred option commented 
that the current location of the Visitor Information service at the Mile End site was the best location 
for a ‘strategic’ service due to:

• Volume of passing traffic and location on a major trunk road
• Ease of Access
• Free Parking

The location of, access to, and parking for the Oswestry Visitor Information Centre was raised as an 
issue by a number of the respondents who disagreed with the preferred option and were concerned 
that potential visitors to the area would be lost.

In response to Q2 a number of suggestions were made.  In summary:

• Find a better more accessible location for the VIC.
• Invest in the current provision rather than cut it.
• Have touch screen kiosks that could also be used across the County.
• Discuss opportunities with partner organisation.

Shropshire Council has discussed a number of options with key stakeholders and partner 
organisations both within and outside of the County.  The discussions did not result in any 
sustainable alternative delivery or funding solutions.

A Shropshire Equality and Social Inclusion Impact Assessment (ESIIA) was completed which can 
be found at Appendix A. The conclusion of this was that the changes proposed would not have a 
detrimental effect on Protected Characteristic groups and other groups in Shropshire.

A copy of the consultation paper is found in Appendix B.

7.0     Next steps

Subject to the approval of the recommendations the following tasks need to be undertaken to reach 
a successful conclusion of the re-design of Visitor Information Services in this part of Shropshire.

1) Commence consultation with the staff affected by the decision.
2) Plan to hand the building back to the landlord in the condition stated in the lease.
3) Enter into a Contract for Services with Oswestry Borderlands Tourism Association to deal with 

telephone, email and post enquiries for a three year period.



4) Arrange for the re-direction of these enquiries from Mile End to the Heritage Centre.
5) Commission a display board to be located on the Mile End service area promoting other visitor 

information facilities nearby.
6) Communicate the changes to stakeholders, users and the wider community.
7) Make changes to the highway signposting around Mile End roundabout.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

North Shropshire and Oswestry Visitor Economy Strategy

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor Stuart West

Local Members Cllr  Joyce Barrow

List of Appendices
A. Shropshire Equality and Social Inclusion Impact Assessment (ESIIA)
B. The consultation paper – autumn/winter 2015
C.       Report of responses to the consultation paper.



Appendix A

Shropshire Equality and Social Inclusion Impact Assessment (ESIIA)

Contextual Notes 2014

The What and the Why:

The Equality and Social Inclusion Impact Assessment (ESIIA) tool replaces the Equality Impact Needs 
Assessment (EINA) tool previously in use by Shropshire Council. It is a tool to help us to identify whether 
or not any new or significant changes to services, including policies, procedures, functions or projects, 
may have an adverse impact on a particular group of people, and whether the human rights of individuals 
may be affected.

What we are now doing is broadening out such assessments to consider social inclusion. This is so that 
we are thinking as carefully and completely as possible about all groups and communities in Shropshire, 
including people in rural areas and people we may describe as vulnerable, as well as people in what are 
described as the nine 'protected characteristics' of groups of people in our population, eg Age, eg Gender 
Reassignment. We demonstrate equal treatment to people who are in these groups and to people who are 
not, through having what is termed 'due regard' to their needs and views when developing and 
implementing policy and strategy and when commissioning, procuring, arranging or delivering services.

It is a legal requirement for local authorities to assess the equality and human rights impact of changes 
proposed or made to services, such as through a new policy or a change in procedure. Carrying out 
ESIIAs helps us as a public authority to ensure that, as far as possible, we are taking actions to meet the 
general equality duty placed on us by the Equality Act 2010 to have what is called due regard to the three 
equality aims in our decision making processes. These are: eliminating discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation; advancing equality of opportunity; and fostering good relations.

The How:

The assessment comprises two parts: a screening part, and a full report part.

Screening (Part One) enables energies to be focussed on the service changes for which there are 
potentially important equalities and human rights implications. If screening indicates that the impact is 
likely to be positive overall, or is likely to have a medium or low negative or positive impact on certain 
groups of people, a full report is not required. Energies should instead focus on review and monitoring and 
ongoing evidence collection, enabling incremental improvements and adjustments that will lead to overall 
positive impacts for all groups in Shropshire.

A full report (Part Two) needs to be carried out where screening indicates that there are considered to be 
or likely to be significant negative impacts for certain groups of people, and/or where there are human 
rights implications. If you are not sure, a full report is recommended, as it enables more evidence to be 
collected that will help you to reach an informed opinion.



Shropshire Council Part 1 ESIIA: initial screening and assessment
Please note: prompt questions and guidance within boxes are in italics. You are welcome to type over them when completing this 
form. Please extend the boxes if you need more space for your commentary.

Name of service change

Please use this box for the full formal name of the service change, whether policy, procedure, 
function, project, etc. The term “service change” is used in this form as shorthand for 
whatever form the changes may take.

The Re-design of Visitor Information Services in NW Shropshire

Aims of the service change and description

Please use this box to describe the aims and purpose of the service change. Include any 
background that you think is helpful for someone reading this ESIIA, eg if there is a new 
policy, why is it being introduced? If there is a change to an existing service, what are the 
reasons for this? For example, a redesign and rationalisation of Customer Service Points may 
seek to concentrate provision strategically on areas where there is a mix of population density 
and customer need. Further details giving context could also be helpful here.

Shropshire Council is working with partners to re-design existing face to face Visitor 
Information Services, to create places where visitors and local residents can easily get 
information and advice that both helps them and contributes to the wider tourism economy of 
the county. This is to help us to create and maintain resilient facilities at a time of reducing 
public service budgets. 

In Shropshire’s market towns our vision is that traditional Visitor Information Services will be 
delivered, in some cases, through community enterprises that are already active within those 
communities. A community enterprise is the same as a social enterprise, i.e. an organisation 
trading for social purpose with any profits reinvested rather than going to shareholders. A 
community enterprise is based in, and provides benefits to, a particular local neighbourhood 
or community and is an organisation run for the community. These enterprises are best 
placed to utilise their links into communities and therefore maximise every contact that is 
made with them.

This work is also linked to savings, and therefore we are working to ensure that through 
redesign we find ways to continue to deliver high quality services, at a lower cost.

During 2015, Shropshire Council, with key local partners has been discussing new ways of 
delivering the Visitor Information Services in north-west Shropshire where the Council 
currently operates the Oswestry Mile End Visitor Information Centre on the service area next 
to the A5 trunk road. 

Intended audiences and target groups for the service change

This box relates to stakeholders, people concerned, interested parties, etc. For example, if the 
change will affect people receiving adult social care services and their families and carers, 
please say so here. If the change will affect the whole population, please say so here. If the 
change will affect cross-border working, for example by the Marches Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP), please mention such partnerships as well.



The proposals will see a change in location of the provision of Visitor Information Services 
which will impact mainly on personal callers to Mile End VIC. There will be some impact on 
stakeholders including businesses but this will be mitigated by the availability of alternative 
services in Oswestry and the introduction of a centralised business support service The 
Marches Growth Hub with a phone based service.

It is proposed that Shropshire Council will transfer the responsibility for dealing with enquiries 
from visitors and local residents by telephone, email and post to Oswestry Borderlands Tourism 
Ltd which will run the service under a 3 year Service Level Agreement. 

As a result of this change, the current Oswestry Mile End Visitor Information Centre will close 
and the office handed back to the landlord. A new map display board will help to orientate 
visitors and inform them of local information services provided at Oswestry Heritage Centre and 
local visitor attractions. Details of telephone numbers and websites will be displayed together 
with full details of local attractions and other services.

Evidence used for screening of the service change

This box relates to use made of evidence in developing the change to the service. This could 
be Census 2011 analyses, community demographic profiles, results of surveys, or previously 
collected evidence material. For example, if the change relates to a stage of county-wide Site 
Allocation and Management of Development consultation process, the evidence used would 
include data collected at previous stages and in development and adoption of the Local Plan. 
If the evidence is on the Council website, hyperlinks could usefully be inserted here. Please 
comment on the use of evidence, and whether as a consequence there were any adjustments 
to what was originally proposed.

The Visitor Information service holds data on the numbers of existing users, including the 
method by which they access the service. There is no data on the proportion of users that fit in 
to the categories of people listed with protected characteristics. 

Specific consultation and engagement with intended audiences and target groups for 
the service change

This box relates to use made of any specific consultation with the audiences for the service. 
This could be online surveys, use of social media, one off focus groups, events, drop in 
sessions, etc. Please comment on the headline results, and whether as a consequence there 
were any adjustments to what was originally proposed.

An initial soft market testing exercise was undertaken with key stakeholders in the summer of 
2015 to assess if there was demand from other organisations to take over the operation of the 
service. One interested party expressed an interest in providing a service to personal callers 
at the location from which the business is operated.

A six-week consultation is being launched in mid-November 2015 to include users, 
stakeholders and other interested parties. The consultation will ask for views on its preferred 
proposal and suggestions for alternative approaches.

The council’s preferred proposal is included in the consultation document, together with the 



opportunity for consultees to put forward their own ideas on how Visitor Information Services 
could be delivered in the future.

Option One
Shropshire Council’s preferred proposal for the future delivery of Visitor Information Services 
in north-west Shropshire is to transfer the responsibility for enquiries by personal callers, 
email, telephone and post to Oswestry Borderland Tourism Ltd at the Heritage Centre and to 
close the facility at Mile End Service area.  

An area and town map information board would be provided at the Mile End Service Area 
promoting the availability of local Visitor Information Services in Oswestry and at nearby 
tourist attractions. The board would include the telephone number of Oswestry Heritage 
Centre VIC, local websites, local visitor amenities and other helpful information.  This would 
result in the service continuing to be delivered in north-west Shropshire but at a reduced cost 
to the Council. A Service Level Agreement with Oswestry Borderland Tourism Ltd would 
provide financial support to provide Visitor Information Services in the area.

Option Two
Whilst Option One is the Council’s preferred option, it does not have a closed mind to other 
proposals or suggestions that are made through this consultation period.

This period of consultation will run from 16th November until 28th December 2015. 

Consultation forms are available at the Oswestry Mile End Visitor Information Centre and 
Oswestry Heritage Centre and may be returned to both locations.

Potential impact on Protected Characteristic groups and on social inclusion 

Guidance notes on how to carry out the initial assessment

Using the results of evidence gathering and specific consultation and engagement, please consider how 
the service change as proposed may affect people within the nine Protected Characteristic groups and 
people at risk of social exclusion.

1. Have the intended audiences and target groups been consulted about:

 their current needs and aspirations and what is important to them;
 the potential impact of this service change on them, whether positive or negative, intended or 

unintended;
 the potential barriers they may face.

2. If the intended audience and target groups have not been consulted directly, have representatives 
been consulted, or people with specialist knowledge, or research explored?

3. Have other stakeholder groups and secondary groups, for example carers of service users, been 
explored in terms of potential unintended impacts?

4. Are there systems set up to:



 monitor the impact, positive or negative, intended or intended, for all the different groups;
 enable open feedback and suggestions from a variety of audiences through a variety of methods.

5. Are there any Human Rights implications? For example, is there a breach of one or more of the 
human rights of an individual or group?

6. Will the service change as proposed have a positive or negative impact on fostering good relations?

7. Will the service change as proposed have a positive or negative impact on social inclusion?

Guidance on what a negative impact might look like

High 
Negative

Significant potential impact, risk of exposure, history of complaints, no mitigating 
measures in place or no evidence available: urgent need for consultation with 
customers, general public, workforce

Medium
Negative

Some potential impact, some mitigating measures in place but no evidence 
available how effective they are: would be beneficial to consult with customers, 
general public, workforce

Low 
Negative

Almost bordering on non-relevance to the ESIIA process (heavily legislation led, 
very little discretion can be exercised, limited public facing aspect, national policy 
affecting degree of local impact possible)

Initial assessment for each group
Please rate the impact that you perceive the service change is likely to have on a group, through inserting a tick in the 
relevant column.
Protected Characteristic 
groups and other 
groups in Shropshire 

High 
negative 
impact
Part Two 
ESIIA 
required

High 
positive 
impact
Part One 
ESIIA 
required

Medium 
positive or 
negative 
impact
Part One ESIIA 
required

Low positive 
or negative 
impact
Part One 
ESIIA 
required

Age (please include children, young 
people, people of working age, older 
people. Some people may belong to 
more than one group eg young person 
with disability)



Disability (please include: mental 
health conditions and syndromes 
including autism; physical disabilities or 
impairments; learning disabilities; 
Multiple Sclerosis; cancer; HIV)



Gender re-assignment 
(please include associated aspects: 
safety, caring responsibility, potential 
for bullying and harassment)



Marriage and Civil 
Partnership (please include 
associated aspects: caring 
responsibility, potential for bullying and 
harassment)



Pregnancy & Maternity 
(please include associated aspects: 
safety, caring responsibility, potential 
for bullying and harassment)





Race (please include: ethnicity, 
nationality, culture, language, gypsy, 
traveller)



Religion and belief (please 
include: Buddhism, Christianity, 
Hinduism, Islam, Judaism, Non 
conformists; Rastafarianism; Sikhism, 
Shinto, Taoism, Zoroastrianism, and 
any others)



Sex (please include associated 
aspects: safety, caring responsibility, 
potential for bullying and harassment)



Sexual Orientation (please 
include associated aspects: safety; 
caring responsibility; potential for 
bullying and harassment)



Other: Social Inclusion 
(please include families and friends 
with caring responsibilities; people with 
health inequalities; households in 
poverty; refugees and asylum seekers; 
rural communities; people you consider 
to be vulnerable)



Decision, review and monitoring

Decision Yes No
Part One ESIIA Only? 

Proceed to Part Two Full 
Report? 

If Part One, please now use the boxes below and sign off at the foot of the page. If Part Two, please 
move on to the full report stage.

Actions to mitigate negative impact or enhance positive impact of the service change

Check: for the groups affected, what actions will you now take to mitigate or enhance impact 
of the service change? For example, if you are reducing a service there may be further use 
you could make of publicity and awareness raising through social media and other channels 
to reach more people who may be affected.

Alternative service provision to the current manned office  will include a new noticeboard at 
Mile End Service area pointing visitors to the new services as well as providing information 
and maps, the availability of manned services at Oswestry Heritage Centre (in person, by 
phone, by post and email). Businesses will be able to use this service and the new Marches 
Growth Hub.

Actions to review and monitor the impact of the service change

Check: what arrangements will you have in place to continue to collect evidence and data and 
to continue to engage with all groups who may be affected by the service change, including 
the intended audiences? For example, customer feedback and wider community engagement 



opportunities, including involvement of elected Shropshire Council councillors for a locality.

The SLA will be regularly monitored to ensure that Oswestry Borderlands Tourism Ltd carry out 
the functions agreed under the Service Level Agreement with Shropshire Council.

Scrutiny at Part One screening stage

People involved Signatures Date
Lead officer carrying out the 
screening
Any internal support
Any external support
Head of service

Sign off at Part One screening stage

Name Signatures Date
Lead officer’s name

Head of service’s name



 Appendix B The Consultation Paper

Visitor Information Services in North-West Shropshire - Consultation

Introduction – what is this consultation about?

Shropshire Council is working with partners to re-design existing face to face Visitor Information Services, 
to create places where visitors and local residents can easily get information and advice that both helps 
them and contributes to the wider tourism economy of the county. This is to help us to create and maintain 
resilient facilities at a time of reducing public service budgets. 

In Shropshire’s market towns our vision is that traditional Visitor Information Services will be delivered, in 
some cases, through community enterprises that are already active within those communities. A community 
enterprise is the same as a social enterprise, i.e. an organisation trading for social purpose with any profits 
reinvested rather than going to shareholders. A community enterprise is based in, and provides benefits to, 
a particular local neighbourhood or community and is an organisation run for the community. These 
enterprises are best placed to utilise their links into communities and therefore maximise every contact that 
is made with them.

This work is also linked to savings, and therefore we are working to ensure that through redesign we find 
ways to continue to deliver high quality services, at a lower cost.

During 2015, Shropshire Council, with key local partners has been discussing new ways of delivering the 
Visitor Information Services in north-west Shropshire where the Council currently operates the Oswestry 
Mile End Visitor Information Centre on the service area next to the A5 trunk road. An initial soft market 
testing exercise was undertaken during July. Some interest was expressed in providing information services 
to visitors in the area but not on the current site.

Shropshire Council is now seeking responses to proposals relating to the future delivery of Visitor 
Information Services in north-west Shropshire. These proposals are detailed in this consultation document. 
We want to stress that as no formal decision has yet been made, there is also an opportunity for alternative 
proposals to be made. The information we receive through the consultation will be used to inform any 
decision making on the future delivery of Visitor Information Services and the management of the Oswestry 
Mile End VIC.
 
The potential impact of the proposals on VIC users, particularly those who might be impacted more by any 
change is being assessed through the completion of an Equality & Social Inclusion Impact Assessment.

This period of consultation will run from 17th November until 29th Dec 2015. Completed forms can be 
returned to the Oswestry Mile End VIC and Oswestry Heritage Centre.

Comments can also be submitted online by going to www.shropshire.gov.uk/get-involved  and searching for 
Visitor Information NW Shropshire Consultation.

Background to existing Visitor Information Services in NW Shropshire

Oswestry Mile End Visitor Information Centre

The Oswestry Mile End VIC is run by the Library Service of Shropshire Council and is open 5 days a week 
providing a range of visitor services including free and saleable information leaflets and books, souvenirs, 
bed booking facility and also answers enquiries by post, phone and email. It provides services to less than 
30,000 visitors per year, a significant decrease on the peak number of 76,000 in 2008.

http://www.shropshire.gov.uk/get-involved


The office is rented from the site owner at a peppercorn rent and the Council covers other costs such as 
business rates, staffing, energy and the costs of supplies for re-sale.

Oswestry Heritage Centre – Visitor Information Centre

Visitor Information is available at the Heritage centre in the town centre next to St. Oswald’s Church. It is 
open all year, Monday to Saturday and deals with enquiries in person, by letter, email and telephone. The 
service is operated with paid staff by Oswestry Borderland Tourism Ltd.

Other Information Outlets

Local tourist attractions and accommodation providers offer information services to their customers 
including free leaflets and assistance by staff. Increasingly visitors are using smart phones and portable 
computers such as i-pads to access information. Popular websites for this part of Shropshire are provided 
by Oswestry Borderlands Tourism Ltd, Shropshire Tourism and Virtual Shropshire in addition to national 
sites like TripAdvisor and many others.

What the consultation is for - what proposals are being made?

A main proposal is included in this consultation document, together with the opportunity for you to put forward 
your own ideas on how Visitor Information Services could be delivered in the future.

Option One
Shropshire Council’s preferred proposal for the future delivery of Visitor Information Services in north-west 
Shropshire is to transfer the responsibility for enquiries by personal callers, email, telephone and post to 
Oswestry Borderland Tourism Ltd at the Heritage Centre and to close the facility at Mile End Service area.  

An area and town map information board would be provided at the Mile End Service Area promoting the 
availability of local Visitor Information Services in Oswestry and at nearby tourist attractions. The board 
would include the telephone number of Oswestry Heritage Centre VIC, local websites, local visitor amenities 
and other helpful information.  This would result in the service continuing to be delivered in north-west 
Shropshire but at a reduced cost to the Council. A Service Level Agreement with Oswestry Borderland 
Tourism Ltd would provide financial support to provide Visitor Information Services in the area.

Option Two
Whilst Option One is the Council’s preferred option, it does not have a closed mind to other proposals or 
suggestions that are made through this consultation period.

This period of consultation will run from17th November until 29th December 2015. 

Consultation forms are available at the Oswestry Mile End Visitor Information Centre and Oswestry Heritage Centre 
and may be returned to both locations.

Details of the Oswestry Mile End Visitor Information centre 

DETAIL
Management organisation Shropshire Council

Hours that the Visitor 
Information Centre is open

1 April to 30 September

Monday:  9am - 5pm
Tuesday:  9am - 5pm
Wednesday:  Closed
Thursday:  9am - 5pm



Friday:  9am - 5pm
Saturday:  10am - 4pm
Sunday:  Closed

1 October to 31 March

Monday:  9.30am - 3.30pm
Tuesday:  9.30am - 3.30pm
Wednesday:  Closed
Thursday:  9.30am - 3.30pm
Friday:  9.30am - 3.30pm
Saturday:  10am - 2pm
Sunday:  Closed

Parking Public parking on site.

Direct running costs for 
Shropshire Council £36,527 excluding re-charges in 2014-15

Preferred option – transfer responsibility for visitor enquiries by email, post and telephone to 
Oswestry Borderlands Tourism Ltd at Oswestry Heritage Centre. Promote alternative sources of 
local information via a map board at Oswestry Mile End Services including area and Oswestry 
town centre maps, telephone numbers, websites and more.

Shropshire Council will transfer the responsibility for dealing with enquiries from visitors and local residents by 
telephone, email and post to Oswestry Borderlands Tourism Ltd which will run the service under a 3 year Service 
Level Agreement. 

The current Oswestry Mile End Visitor Information Centre will close and the office handed back to the landlord. A map 
display board will help to orientate visitors and inform them of local information services provided at Oswestry Heritage 
Centre and local visitor attractions. Details of telephone numbers and websites will be displayed together with full 
details of local attractions and other services.

PROPOSED DETAIL
Management organisation Oswestry Borderlands Tourism Ltd

Hours that the Visitor 
Information Centre at 
Oswestry Heritage Centre is 
staffed

Summer: April to Sept: Mon - Sat 10am - 4.30pm. 
Sundays closed.
Winter: Oct to March: Mon - Sat 10am - 4pm. Sundays 
closed.

Parking Town centre car parks

Distance from Mile End to 
Heritage Centre

1.6 miles

Direct costs for Shropshire 
Council per annum

Cost of new Service Level 
Agreement

One off cost of new map 
display board(s)

SLA to be agreed

To be agreed.

To be determined.



1. Do you agree with the Council’s preferred option described above?

Yes

No

If you answered no please give your reasons why here…

2. Please indicate if there are other alternatives Shropshire Council should consider for the delivery of Visitor 
Information Services in north-west Shropshire, which would assist the Council in meeting its required 
outcomes in reducing costs and delivering a sustainable Visitor Information Service.

This period of consultation will run from 17th November to 29th December 2015. Completed forms can be 
returned to the Visitor Information Centres at Mile End, Oswestry or Oswestry Heritage Centre.

Comments can also be submitted online by going to www.shropshire.gov.uk/get-involved  and searching for 
Visitor Information Centre NW Shropshire Consultation.

If you would like to be kept informed about this work as it progresses, please complete your name and contact 
email address below.

Name………………………………………………………………………………………

Email address………………………………………………………………………………

Appendix C - Responses to Consultation

Q1 Preferred option reminder: To transfer 
the responsibility for dealing with enquiries 

from visitors and local residents by 
telephone, email and post to Oswestry 

Borderlands Tourism Ltd which will run the 
service under a 3 year Service Level 

Agreement. The current Oswestry Mile End 
Visitor Information Centre will close and the 
office handed back to the landlord. A map 
display board will help to orientate visitors 

and inform them of local information 
services provided at Oswestry Heritage 

Centre and local visitor attractions. Details 
of telephone numbers and websites will be 
displayed together with full details of local 

attractions and other services. Do you
agree with this option?

http://www.shropshire.gov.uk/get-involved


Answered: 26    Skipped: 0

Yes

No

0%       10%         20%         30%         40%         50%         60%         70%         80%         90%   100%

Answer Choices Responses

Yes 26.92%                                                                                                      7

No 73.08%                                                                                                    19

Total 26

# Use this space to make any comments about this: Date

1 I have read through the information but feel ill equipped to agree or disagree. Why do visitors visit or contact that 
particular VIC? A quick search online reveals 4 different websites for Oswestry on the first page of Google. (1. 
www.visitoswestry.com/ 2. www.visitoswestry.com/tourist-information-centre/ 3. 
https://www.shropshiretourism.co.uk/oswestry/ 4. www.oswestry.com/). All offer information about what to do in 
Oswestry, but not in an easily digestible form. The TripAdvisopr page for Oswestry is much more compelling 
http://www.tripadvisor.co.uk/Attractions-g504106-Activities-Oswestry_Shropshire_England.html with the top 10 
attractions rated by visitors.

12/22/2015 11:21 PM

2 We have one of the most comprehensive tourist information centres outside London at Mile End, providing both local 
and national information. The Heritage Centre does not have the capacity to replicate the range of material Mile End 
provides, and has no parking facilities.

12/22/2015 2:52 PM

3 Attached to hard copy please find letter published in the Shropshire Star. 12/22/2015 2:50 PM

4 This location is ideal and a reason why many people choose to stop here. This will impact on other businesses too 1. 
Impact the ones in the same location and 2. Businesses that are promoted by the centre with products and word of 
mouth.

12/22/2015 2:45 PM

5 Mile End was the TIC for a large area of north Shropshire and North Wales, not only Oswestry! It attracted over 70-80 
thousand visitors a year before council cutbacks, and provided a good service to visitors travelling up or down the A5. 
with information from across boundaries, not restricted to information about Oswestry town as would be the result of 
the projected arrangement.

12/22/2015 10:12 AM

6 Even in the modern digital age, people still like face to face contact especially where leisure decisions are concerned. 
Help and advice delivered in an informed and enthusiastic chain of high street travel agencies.manner can only help
all aspects of the tourism industry in the area which obviously has positive effects on the parts of the local economy. If 
personal contact was not important then leisure giants such as Thomson Holidays would sell all their products online 
and close their extensive

12/20/2015 9:26 AM

7 If the brief was to design an ideal site for a Visitor Information Centre it would be somewhere like Mile End which is 
adjacent to Major Trunk Roads with Pit stop etc. You are suggesting that potential visitors need to drive into Oswestry, 
find a car park pay for the privilege of parking to visit the information centre. I feel that most visitors would just drive 
straight on.

12/18/2015 12:34 PM

8 if this option is agreed then the whole signposting into Oswestry for Visitors should be looked at including the brown 
Tourism Signs. Every major road should clearly sign the way into Oswestry to the Town TIC which is located at 
Oswestry Visitor & Exhibition centre(not Oswestry Heritage centre) Signage in town should be improved too.

12/17/2015 6:24 PM

http://www.visitoswestry.com/
http://www.visitoswestry.com/
http://www.visitoswestry.com/tourist-information-centre/
http://www.shropshiretourism.co.uk/oswestry/
http://www.oswestry.com/
http://www.tripadvisor.co.uk/Attractions-g504106-Activities-Oswestry_Shropshire_England.html
http://www.tripadvisor.co.uk/Attractions-g504106-Activities-Oswestry_Shropshire_England.html


9 Visitor numbers have dropped coinciding with the considerable development of the other parts of the site, i.e. the PFS 
at the front of the site. This has reduced visitors stopping at the rear area where the VIC is located. No effort appears to 
have been made to overcome this. This VIC was is at a major visitor transit point in the Borderlands, the potential of 
this site to promote the wider area to visitors and other locals from outside Oswestry will be lost. None face to face 
contact will be the only replacement, which is not a good PR move. Anyone venturing into Oswestry for Tourist 
Information will have to pay for the 'pleasure' when parking.

12/16/2015 10:08 AM

10 It is important for people to have a reason to stop and be directed into Oswestry and regions beyond - we need to 
catch the passing trade and promote Shropshire and North Wales.

12/15/2015 11:27 AM

11 The Mile End VIC is ideally placed out of town for passing vehicle, with no car parking fees to pay. I have used it on 
many occasions for information, maps, booking, souvenirs without the need to go into Oswestry.

12/7/2015 10:48 AM

12 The Mile End office firstly cannot be handed back to 'the landlord', as the landlord is Shropshire Council who currently, 
and have always occupied the premises. There is a covenant on the centre stating that it can only be used as a Tourist 
Information Centre which was put in place by Oswestry Borough Council.This fact is widely known and would incur a 
cost to Shropshire Council to break this covenant. The falling visitor numbers have been manipulated by Shropshire 
Council. The numbers fell because opening hours were slashed, the centre was forced to close two days per week,
and the staff were ordered to close on bank holidays, and between Xmas and New Year - traditionally days of high 
footfall and raised income. Visitor numbers have also fallen because of the poor signage to the centre and its 
services, and the fact that Shropshire council failed in its duty as site owner to ensure that the leaseholders on that
side of the service area maintained the complex to a high standard as befits the gateway to Oswestry, as stated in the 
terms of their lease. Despite all this the Mile End Centre continues to attract 30,000 visitors per annum, which is still
20,000 more than the 10,000 anticipated when it was originally opened in 1987. This figure is huge compared to the 
number of visitors to the Oswestry Heritage Centre, and closing Mile End would result in a total loss of these visitors 
and the revenue that they bring to the local economy. Closure would not result in increased visitor numbers to the 
Heritage Centre, because despite it being a well run, attractive building it is in totally the wrong position for a visitor 
centre. Locals are unable to find it, so visitors would have little chance. It does not have adjacent free parking, or the 
wheelchair access that Mile End does. Mile End is also perfectly placed to help visitors staying in the Travelodge and 
Premier Inn, it acts as a shop window selling maps and local crafts to visitors in transit as well as those staying in the 
area. This brings more revenue to the local economy from outside which would be lost. Mile End also services many 
of the local tourist points, ordering and distributing literature. The Heritage Centre does not have the capacity to 
continue with this service. Shropshire Council states that it costs £36,527 to run the centre but states that part of this 
cost is buying stock. It also states that this figure excludes recharge. The stock is purchased is for resale at a healthy 
profit, and if shown, this would greatly reduce the actual amount that the centre costs to run. I think that any savings
made by closing Mile End would be minimal, there would be a loss of revenue to the local economy, a reduction in the 
profile of Oswestry and the Welsh Borders as a tourist destination and would leave an empty building at the gateway
to the town

12/3/2015 1:47 PM

13 It is incredibly short-sighted to close what is one of the best VICs in the area. Not only does it offer a great service to 
tourism-related venues/activities in the area, it is also on the main route into North Wales and therefore encourages 
tourists who stop for fuel and food to investigate what is on offer in the area. While Oswestry Heritage Centre does a 
great job it is not easy to find, has limited parking and is not a place likely for the average passing tourist to find . Only 
folk definitely making Oswestry their destination are likely to visit. I am involved with the Llanymynech Heritage Area 
and have first-hand experience of visitors who casually dropped in to Mile End VIC, discovered what NW Shropshire 
had to offer and then decided to spend time in the area. Tourism is important for this area but it must be promoted and 
advertised and people need to be able to discover it. Mile End VIC is brilliant at promoting the area and must be 
allowed to continue

11/30/2015 11:46 PM

14 The only site for Tourist Information is at the Mile end roundabout. The passing traffic is enormous and to withdraw this 
service is absolute madness. It is a central hub for Mid Wales, North Wales and the West Midlands and should be 
expanded rather than withdrawn. The Heritage Centre is fine for people who have parked up and are already within 
Oswestry town centre but totally hopeless in raising awareness of the various opportunities available for traffic which 
avoids Oswestry.I very strongly object to proposal that the British Ironworks Centre should be part of the new offer, it
is a commercial enterprise which would require people travelling from the West Midlands to cross a dangerous road; 
then having got past the objectionable man on the gate; would then have to travel up the driveway before being 
subjected to a sales pitch for the site! It is in the wrong place, misses out on promoting Oswestry for traffic coming 
from Mid and North Wales routes.

11/27/2015 7:39 PM

15 Mile End Tourist Information Centre is exactly where it is needed - ie where tourists/traffic are - on the cross roads of 
A5/A483 - town centre = no good. Tourists need to stop = information/toilets/snacks and be on their way. No time to 
spend trying to find info tucked away.

11/27/2015 11:40 AM



16 The site is ideal for passing tourism both for the Shropshire area and the gateway to Wales. It is easy to find, easy to 
park where as the Heritage site is difficult to find and NO parking. The Heritage site is so small it would not be able to 
house the array of literature that is so useful for tourists as at Mile End. Why not close the Heritage Centre Tourism 
Dept. and combine it all at Mile End. Since it is a cross border tourism site can you not seek part funding from Wales. I 
am both a user of Mile End as a Tourist and use it and send my holiday let tourists to this site.

11/27/2015 11:37 AM

17 The existing Centre is a necessary visual introduction to Oswestry, at a major point of arrival near the town, 
encouraging visitors, providing a welcome (the staff there are so helpful and friendly to callers), as well as being a shop 
for people to buy locally sourced gifts, maps and local literature. The Mile End Travelodge is always busy. I hate to
think what the location will look like without the Information Centre to keep standards of cleanliness and brightness at 
a reasonable standard. This is the first impression many people will have of Oswestry and district.

11/26/2015 12:13 PM

18 A budget will be required to maintain the map and list of attractions and keep this information up to date. Use QR 
codes will help visitors get quick access to on-line information. The funding with the SLA to OBT must be enough to 
cover all their costs.

11/25/2015 7:19 AM

19 Oswestry is not well known on the tourist map and in order to maximise possible tourism potential, I believe it is 
important to have an office on the outskirts of town with adequate parking where people can call in and see what 
Oswestry has to offer. That way they can filter tourists into town. If they have to go all the way in to town first, park-up 
and then find the TIC, it is likely a goodly number will not bother and drive on. While the Heritage Centre is a fantastic 
place, it is too far from the main car parks.

11/24/2015 12:23 PM

20 It is not necessary to have 2 Tourist information offices in one town 11/20/2015 11:47 AM

21 No, it cuts down options for tourists and means it is less likely anyone stopping at Mile End for another means will 
become interested in the area as they can't get information about it.

11/19/2015 11:04 PM

22 An already established visitor attraction is a better way to pass on information to the visitors to Oswestry. 11/19/2015 9:50 PM

23 The murderous redesign of the Mile End roundabout and the terrible state of the service area roads means you take 
your life in your hands to visit the current TIC. Its location is also not very obvious. Add the very restricted hours and 
sadly this looks the only option. If I were visiting Oswestry I would also expect visitor info to be in the town centre. the 
new centre should be open good long hours, especially at weekends.

11/19/2015 2:55 PM

24 We will lose all the traffic from the A5/A483 which currently stop at Mile End. People will drive on to Llangollen or 
Wrexham. How many customers have used Mile End in the last 12 months? How many mystery shopper awards have 
Mile End won? Why close an excellent service?

11/18/2015 8:41 PM

25 If you move visitor information services visitors will drive past Oswestry like they did in the past 11/18/2015 6:57 PM

Q2 Use this space to let us know about any 
ideas you might have for alternative 

solutions that we should consider for the 
future delivery of visitor information 

services in North West Shropshire which 
would assist us in meeting our required 
outcomes to reduce costs and deliver a 

sustainable service.
Answered: 21    Skipped: 5

# Responses Date



1 Decide *exactly* what services the VIC will provide and how it will benefit the local businesses. Locate the gift 
shop/leaflets for local businesses in a highly trafficked easy to find shopfront. Do a deal with TripAdvisor to publish 
their review engine on the official Oswestry Tourism website. Subscribe to an accommodation booking
service/platform that can accommodate manual entry (taken over the phone by a member of VIC staff, visitor enquiries 
and visitor direct bookings). Include info on the website organized into a database so users can search by 
activity,attraction, history, distance, walkable, day-trip etc. I would have lots more ideas, too, but not tonight. I was 
president and head of web content and media operations for a Silicon Valley marketing and media company. Moved 
back to the area because it's lovely. Grew up in Llangollen but now in Llansilin on the Shropshire side of the border. 
Given that the objective is reduce costs further from £36,500 I believe a more user-friendly and useful website (invest
in one of the ones that's live already) would be a good use of funds with minimal spend on a bricks and mortar 
presence.

12/22/2015 11:21 PM

2 No suitable alternative comes to mind. 12/22/2015 2:52 PM

3 There are none in the same class as the existing Centre. Please see letter attached to hard copy regarding the 
Heritage Centre. The Ironworks has been suggested. The exit from there - especially when turning right across the 
busy and fast A5 is dangerous as witnessed by the fact that a camera van is often parked there.

12/22/2015 2:50 PM

4 This centre is and asset to your council, I think its absurd that you are even considering closing it. How about investing 
in the centre and making it much more it has the potential for. I work at this location as a site manager and the number 
of unhappy people that have stopped for just tourist information is immense but unhappy that the place is closed on a 
Sunday and Wednesday, and also that the hours are shortened, in fact at times when people are more likely to travel. 
No wonder there are less visitors this year. You seriously need a rethink!

12/22/2015 2:45 PM

5 Take a wider view to find solution to providing support to tourism industry in North Shropshire and Wrexham... joined 
up service supported by several local and county wide organistations?

12/22/2015 10:12 AM

6 The solution is to increase revenues at the Mile End Visitor centre and thereby reducing the net cost to the council. 
Obviously, in order to do this visitor levels need to be increased back to the levels achieved back in 2008. The first 
part of the plan has to be improved signage. There are no finger posts on Mile End roundabout showing which exit to 
use and the new configuration of the roundabout is so stressful to use, especially for visitors to the area who are not 
familiar with it, that they can easily miss the correct exit and as a result do not visit the centre.

12/20/2015 9:26 AM

7 I am led to believe that since 2008 opening hours were cut. Would that not be a reason why foot fall is down. I suggest 
that it is open for longer on a Saturday and open Sunday. More visitors would be able to use it, perhaps closing on a 
Monday & Tuesday. This VIC is vital for this area. Not everyone has the internet!

12/18/2015 12:34 PM

8 In Oswestry, Oswestry Borderland Tourism works closely with Oswestry Town Council but the location of Oswestry 
Visitor & Exhibition centre, and signing to it, makes it difficult for visitors to find. Future options should consider a better 
location and closer partnership working with both Shropshire Council and Oswestry town Council. the option of 
adapting the toilets on the main car park would give many more visitors easy access to information.

12/17/2015 6:24 PM

9 Shropshire Council should have considered the effects of the recent changes at the Mile End Services when dealing 
with Planning Applications, etc for the site and made conditions to protect and improve the provision of the VIC and 
contacts from passing travellers at that time. Yet again Shropshire Council has demonstrated a lack of joined up 
thinking when dealing with change. Reallocate some of the reduced funding to growing tourist areas such Ellesmere to 
boost visitor numbers and facilities.

12/16/2015 10:08 AM

10 Please leave it where it is with the friendly helpful staff who go out of their way to provide information and advice. 12/7/2015 10:48 AM

11 The sensible solution would be for Borderland Tourism to relocate their office to Mile End, fulfilling the terms of the 
covenant. Where the Heritage Centre is located, it does not fulfil its function as a visitor centre. Oswestry Borough 
Council won the Mark Henig Award for the design and location of the information centre at Mile End. Any firm of 
consultants state that a centre should be located at a point of arrival, or a car park, bus stop etc. The Heritage Centre 
doesn't fulfil any of those criteria, there is no parking and it is not accessible, it has minimal visitors and the office 
would benefit from a more high profile location. If Shropshire Council worked in partnershi with Borderland Tourism 
and spent a little money on better signs and improvement to the roads on site, there is no reason why it couldn't be
hugely successful once again for all concerned. If Mile End has to close, the visitor information still needs to be located 
in a better position such as the central car park, but again you would lose the shop window selling Oswestry and all it 
has to offer to passing visitors

12/3/2015 1:47 PM

12 Improve and extend the services available at Mile End, link it with a cafe/'restaurant and involve people from 
businesses within the town, plus volunteers, to take turns in supporting the employed staff. Investment rather than 
cutting back with result in increased trade going into the town rather than it being bypassed completely as it is now 
and would be worse with the new proposals. Support the town local and county councillors not run it down or offer to 
friends.

11/27/2015 7:39 PM

13 Maybe savings not even considered such as volunteers on closed days. 11/27/2015 11:40 AM

14 Why change what is already a success? Please look for savings elsewhere, not cut such a necessary, visual advert 
for the town and district.

11/26/2015 12:13 PM



15 This proposal makes fiscal sense and our understanding of the visitor profile using the current site is that the residents 
and visitors looking for information on Oswestry and the North West of Shropshire can be served effectively through 
this solution.

11/25/2015 7:19 AM

16 How about putting it in what was the Youth Cafe in the Qube building on Oswald Road 11/24/2015 12:23 PM

17 Close the in town centre and place it in a corner of a large business e.g. a bank in town 11/19/2015 11:04 PM

18 Touch screen kiosks that can be updated from a central place. This could also be used across the county. Technology 
based - apps / podcast etc. More tourist information in Oswestry itself eg car parks, at toilet block etc.

11/19/2015 9:50 PM

19 remember to keep the sign board updated and add QR codes. And please bring the current TIC staff to the new 
venue, they are excellent.

11/19/2015 2:55 PM

20 Has anyone asked North Shropshire, or Wrexham Borough or even Powys if they would like to help promote the area. 
Partnership Working? Closing a VIC on a main European Trunk Road is a lost opportunity. Why not a safe overnight 
Truck stop at night and a Vistors centre during the day? Has anyone consulted with The British Ironworks ? How many 
cars stop at the service station? Has a survey been carried out on these drivers as where they come from and what 
they would use?

11/18/2015 8:41 PM

21 Get people that know about tourism and get rid of all the dead wood 11/18/2015 6:57 PM





1

Committee and Date

Cabinet

 16th  March 2016

Application by Burford and Tenbury Wells (Malvern Hills DC) Parish Councils 
to be considered as a Neighbourhood Plan Area

Responsible Officer George Candler, Director of Commissioning
Email: george.candler@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 255003

1.0 Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider and determine the application to designate 
the parishes of Burford and Tenbury Wells (Malvern Hills DC) as a single 
neighbourhood area for the purposes of neighbourhood planning.

1.2 The proposed neighbourhood area involves the parish of Tenbury in Malvern Hills 
District and Burford in Shropshire. The application must therefore be approved by both 
Malvern Hills District and Shropshire Councils to be designated. This report seeks 
approval for the application by the Parish Councils for the Parish Council areas to be 
considered as an appropriate area for a single joint neighbourhood plan (attached as 
Appendix A, map as Appendix B).  

1.3 Tenbury Town Council in conjunction with Burford Parish Council submitted their 
application to designate the parishes of Tenbury and Burford as a single neighbourhood 
area to Malvern Hills District and Shropshire Councils in November 2015. The application 
was made by Tenbury Town Council which has agreed to be the lead or named parish in 
taking forward the neighbourhood plan. It is the Council’s role to decide whether or not the 
Parish Council area forms an appropriate area for their potential neighbourhood plan. 
Various other reports will be brought before Cabinet for decision at other key stages of the 
process.

1.4 The views of respondents have been taken into consideration in making the following 
recommendation.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That Cabinet confirms that the Burford and Tenbury Parish Council areas are an 
appropriate area for the development of a single joint neighbourhood development 
plan and notifies the Parish Council accordingly.



2

REPORT

3.0 Legal Context and Application Procedure

3.1 The power to designate a Neighbourhood Area is exercisable under Section 61G of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. Under Regulation 5(1) of The 
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 an area application has to 
include a map that identifies the area to which the application relates and a statement 
to explain why the area is considered appropriate to be designated as a 
neighbourhood area and that the body is in fact a “relevant body” for the purposes of 
Section 61 G(2) of the Act. Tenbury Parish Council as the lead authority is a relevant 
body for the purposes of the Act. 

3.2 The relevant material was received by Shropshire Council and as required by 
regulation, advertised on 4th December 2015 for a period of 6 weeks. In determining 
the application Shropshire Council must have regard to the desirability of designating 
the whole of the area of a parish council as a neighbourhood area and the desirability 
of maintaining the existing boundaries of areas already designated as neighbourhood 
areas. It is noted that Burford and Tenbury Wells Parish Councils have applied for the 
designation the whole of both parish council areas in their application. 

3.3 In the event the designation is approved it will be published on the Council’s website. 
In the event a designation is refused under Section 61G (9) of the Act reasons must be 
given and the decision publicised in accordance with Regulation 7 of the Regulations.

4.0 Risk Factors

4.1 The statutory framework covering the production of neighbourhood development plans 
is quite prescriptive and there is little risk for either Shropshire Council, or Burford 
Parish Council in following this carefully.  A high degree of trust and cooperation 
between the Councils is critical to reducing risk and ensuring an appropriate balance 
between local initiative and the statutory framework provided by the adopted 
Shropshire Core Strategy and SAMDev Local Plan document.  The designation of an 
appropriate area for a neighbourhood plan is to confirm the geographic area the Plan 
will cover, setting out policies for sustainable development in that area. The 
designation of a Neighbourhood Plan area does not commit the Parish or Town 
Council to producing or completing a Neighbourhood Plan. 

4.2 A Neighbourhood Plan will, after passing through the relevant stages of consultation, 
submission, examination and the referendum, go on to become part of the statutory 
planning framework applied in Shropshire. This plan will very much be a product of the 
community and as such will contain policies that, whilst in general conform with the 
Core Strategy and the SAMDev Plan (as they are required to), will not have been 
tested and scrutinised to the same degree as the rest of the Development Plan. A 
Neighbourhood Plan contains a range of locally produced policies which the 
community have expressly asked to be brought into play to help guide the decision 
making process. Statute provides that planning applications should be determined in 
accordance with the provisions of relevant Development Plan policies unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  The weight given to the Plan thus still remains to 
be balanced with other considerations when taken into the round by decision makers.  



3

5.0 Financial Implications

5.1 The Localism Act and Regulations provide that the costs of; delivering a supporting 
role particularly in the latter stages; appointing an Assessor; conducting an 
Examination and holding a Referendum fall to Shropshire Council.  Current provisions 
allow an application for these additional costs to be met, and a reimbursement of costs 
will therefore be sought from the Government.  As previously acknowledged in reports 
on the Much Wenlock Neighbourhood Plan the robustness of the Neighbourhood Plan 
Policies will be tested over time by independent Planning Inspectors on appeal.  
Members are advised that the liability for future appeal costs rests with Shropshire 
Council as Local Planning Authority and as such the usability of such plans and their 
impact on local decision making will need to be carefully monitored.

6.0 Background

6.1 Shropshire Council’s localised planning approach supports Neighbourhood Plans 
being brought forward under the Localism Act and the 2012 Neighbourhood Planning 
Regulations, indeed we are legally obliged to do so. However, we are also committed 
to promoting and supporting planning for neighbourhoods as a more cost effective and 
sustainable alternative based on sound community led planning principles established 
through a solid backdrop of community led plans, parish planning, design guides etc, 
working within the overall framework provided the Core Strategy and SAMDev Local 
Plan documents.

6.2 Interestingly, the three success criteria cited by the government in their Impact 
Assessment for neighbourhood planning are -  increasing housing supply, reducing 
opposition to economic growth, and increasing community engagement and 
involvement in planning and development. All of which are key components of 
Shropshire’s localised approach to planning, which, starting with our SAMDev Local 
Plan document and progressing through support for community led plans alongside 
our own Place Plans we are committing to the joint delivery of local ambitions, not only 
in terms of locally defined policy guidance (such as design guidance) but also 
community endorsed prioritisation of infrastructure and other beneficial investment to 
help make more sustainable places. This is very much in conformity with the emphasis 
on neighbourhood plans shaping and directing sustainable development in their area 
in paragraphs 184 and 185 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

6.3 The development of a Neighbourhood Plan must be facilitated by the Town or Parish 
Council and will in most cases proceed with support and assistance from volunteers 
across the community. The Parish Council believes that this is a real opportunity for 
the community to have some ownership on future planning policy for the parish and, 
subject to passing the formal tests, an external assessment and a local referendum it 
will become part of the statutory planning framework. Currently it is expected its 
policies will apply until 2026, the same as Shropshire’s Core Strategy but this may be 
extended to align with Shropshire Council’s forthcoming Local Plan review.

6.4 As part of the process Shropshire Council will consider whether the Neighbourhood 
Plan for Burford and Tenbury Wells conforms to its adopted strategic policies and, in 
agreement with the Parish Council, will put it forward for independent assessment. It 
will be the responsibility of Shropshire Council to arrange a local referendum to assess 
local support for the plan proposals and subject to a successful referendum outcome, 
a “yes” vote, Shropshire Council will have a legal duty to ‘make’ the Neighbourhood 
Plan for Burford and Tenbury Wells and bring it into force. This final decision will be a 
matter for Full Council as it makes planning policy.



4

6.5 As required by the Regulations, the neighbourhood area application included a map 
showing the boundary of the proposed neighbourhood area and supporting 
information explaining why the Town and Parish Councils consider the proposed area 
to be appropriate. The proposed neighbourhood area covers the whole of the Tenbury 
and Burford parishes. In their application, Tenbury Town Council say “Tenbury is 
situated within the Malvern Hills district south of the River Teme with several historic 
and natural assets.  Burford is situated to the north of the River Teme within the 
Shropshire Unitary Authority. The county boundary runs along the course of the River 
Teme. The two communities have developed together over time and are 
interdependent with retail and social services being concentrated on the Tenbury side 
of the river but the majority of employment opportunities being found on the Burford 
side of the river.  The two Communities helped shape the Tenbury and Burford 
Community Plan produced in 2004 and updated in 2012 and it is hoped a 
Neighbourhood Plan will enable future planning decisions to recognise the needs of 
these interdependent communities as one whole.  It will also help protect and enhance 
the natural environment from inappropriate development, in order to retain the 
character and individual identity of the area.”

 6.6 If the neighbourhood area application is approved, both Malvern Hills District and 
Shropshire Councils are required under the Neighbourhood Planning Regulations to 
publish on their websites the name of the neighbourhood area, a map which identifies 
the area, and the name of the body that applied for the designation.

7.0 Consideration of Designation

7.1 In accordance with the Regulations, the application was placed on the Malvern Hills 
District and Shropshire Council websites for a six week period inviting representations.  
The deadline for comments was 15th January 2016.

7.2 The Councils received seven representations on the neighbourhood area application – 
available on request. Representations were received from:

• Environment Agency

• Natural England

• Historic England

• Worcestershire County Council

• Gladman Developments Limited

• Councillor Barbara Williams

• Mr. and Mrs. Gough (residents)

7.3 None of the representations raised any objection to the proposed neighbourhood area. 
The Environment Agency provided a guidance note on environmental issues that they 
suggest are considered in the preparation of the neighbourhood plan, including flood 
risk, climate change, waste water infrastructure, water management and groundwater 
protection. Natural England offered general advice relating to protected landscapes, 
protected species, local wildlife sites, best most versatile agricultural land and 
opportunities for enhancing the natural environment. Historic England highlighted the 
importance of local designated and undesignated heritage assets and signposted the 
Town and Parish Councils to relevant guidance. The Worcestershire County Council 
officer response requested that the neighbourhood plan have regard to various 
strategic documents and designations in the preparation of the neighbourhood plan. 
Gladman Developments Limited had no objection to the neighbourhood area 



5

application but wished to take the opportunity to highlight a number of requirements 
that the neighbourhood plan should have regard to, including NPPF and strategic 
policies in the relevant Local Plans. Cllr. Williams and Mr and Mrs Gough supported 
the neighbourhood area application.

7.4 Tenbury Town and Burford Parish Councils are the relevant bodies to make a 
neighbourhood area application for the parishes of Tenbury and Burford. As required 
by the Regulations, the application included a map showing the proposed 
neighbourhood area and an explanation of why the Town and Parish Councils 
consider the area appropriate for the purposes of neighbourhood planning.

7.5 No objections were received to the proposed neighbourhood area during consultation 
undertaken by Malvern Hills District and Shropshire Councils.

7.6 In light of the above, it is considered appropriate to designate the parishes of Tenbury 
and Burford as a single neighbourhood area

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information):

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Mal Price, Portfolio Holder for Planning, Housing, Regulatory Services 
and Environment 

Local Member:
Councillor  Richard Huffer

Appendices:
Appendix A: Area Application
Appendix B: Area Application map



6

Appendix A: Area Application

: Area Application

The Pump Rooms, Teme Street, Tenbury Wells, Worcestershire WR15 8AH   email:clerk@tenburytown.org.uk

Tuesday, 10th November 2015

Application for Designation of a Neighbourhood Area covering the Parishes of Tenbury 
(Malvern Hills District) and Burford (Shropshire)

In accordance with the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, this is a formal 
application by Tenbury Town Council in conjunction with Burford Parish Council to Malvern 
Hills District Council and Shropshire Council for the designation of a Neighbourhood Plan 
Area for the purposes of developing a neighbourhood development plan. The application is 
for the designation of the parishes of Tenbury and Burford as a single neighbourhood area. 
The power to designate an area as a Neighbourhood Area is exercisable under Section 61G 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

The application is made by Tenbury Town Council, which has agreed to be the lead or 
named parish in taking forward this neighbourhood development plan – see authorisation 
to act in relation to neighbourhood area attached.

Under Regulation 5(1) of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, an area 
application has to include the following:

1. A map which identifies the area to which the application relates: 
 The map of the proposed Neighbourhood Area is attached. The proposed 

neighbourhood area includes the whole of the parish of Tenbury and the whole of 
the parish of Burford, and so satisfies section 61G (3) of the Act.

Mr David Clarke
Development, Plans and Conservation
Malvern Hills District Council
The Council House, Avenue Road
Malvern, WR14 3AF

Mr Andrew Mortimer
Economic Growth and Prosperity
Shropshire Council
Shirehall, Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury, SY2 6ND

mailto:clerk@tenburytown.org.uk


7

2. A statement explaining why this area is considered appropriate to be designated as a 
Neighbourhood Area: 
 Tenbury is situated within the Malvern Hills district south of the River Teme with 

several historic and natural assets.  Burford is situated to the north of the River Teme 
within the Shropshire Unitary Authority. The county boundary runs along the course 
of the River Teme. The two communities have developed together over time and are 
interdependent with retail and social services being concentrated on the Tenbury 
side of the river but the majority of employment opportunities being found on the 
Burford side of the river.  The two Communities helped shape the Tenbury and 
Burford Community Plan produced in 2004 and updated in 2012 and it is hoped a 
Neighbourhood Plan will enable future planning decisions to recognise the needs of 
these interdependent communities as one whole.  It will also help protect and 
enhance the natural environment from inappropriate development, in order to retain 
the character and individual identity of the area.

3. A statement that the body making the area application is a relevant body for the 
purposes of section 61G(2) of the 1990 Act; 
 Tenbury Town Council is the relevant body for the purposes of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990, section 61G (2) as specified by the paragraph 2(a) of Schedule 9 of 
the Localism Act 2011 for the preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan.  

Please let me know if any additional information is required.

Yours sincerely

Dawn Worgan
Town Clerk

cc – Mrs N. G. Griffiths – Parish Clerk, Burford Parish Council

Encs. 



8

Authorisation to act in relation to Neighbourhood Area

This application is made by Tenbury Town Council who have agreed to be the lead or named 
Parish in taking forward the Neighbourhood Development Plan.

Section 61F(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows for neighbourhood 
development plan areas to be designated which include the whole or any part of another 
parish council with those parishes’ consent.

This consent has been given by both Tenbury Town Council (at its Town Council Meeting on 
Monday 2nd November 2015) and Burford Parish Council (at its Parish Council Meeting on 
Monday 9th November 2015).

At its meeting on Monday 9th November 2015, Burford Parish Council agreed to submit a joint 
application with Tenbury Town Council for the designation of a neighbourhood area in 
accordance with the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012. Burford Parish 
Council also agreed that the application be made by Tenbury Town Council, which has agreed 
to be the lead or named parish in taking forward this neighbourhood development plan.



9

Appendix B: Area Application Map





Committee and Date

Cabinet 

16 March 2016

The provision and Support to Refugees and Asylum Seekers
In Shropshire

Responsible Officer
e-mail: Ruth.houghton@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 253093

This report sets out the position regarding levels of support required for 
refugees and asylum seekers in Shropshire.

1.  Summary

1.1 A Cross Party Working Group has been established in Shropshire to 
respond to the UK Government response to the repatriation scheme for 
Syrian refugees, as supported by the United Nations High Commission 
for Refugees (UNHCR).

1.2 Since the establishment of this working group additional requests are 
being made of local authorities in different ways.  There are now 
potentially four different cohorts of people that may need support in 
Shropshire.  These are:

 Refugees under the UNHCR Syrian resettlement programme 
 Asylum seekers.
 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children (UASC) dispersed from 

Kent County Council.
 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children (UASC) currently in 

Europe. 

1.3 These four cohorts of people have different characteristics and different 
statuses as citizens of the UK.  This report will set out the background to 
each of these groups and the work undertaken to date and any future 
requirements.  

2.  Recommendations

a) That Cabinet consider the progress made to date by the cross party 
working group and confirm their ongoing commitment to providing 
support, as appropriate, to Syrian Refugees and Unaccompanied 
Asylum Seeker Children.

mailto:Ruth.houghton@shropshire.gov.uk


b) That Cabinet agree to Shropshire supporting up to 10 families under the 
Syrian repatriation programme managed by UNHCR.

c) That Cabinet agree to assist Kent with their challenge of supporting up 
to 2000 children that have arrived there as Unaccompanied Asylum 
Seeker Children and that delegated responsibility is allocated to the 
Director for Children and Young Peoples services in conjunction with the 
Cross Party Working Group to consider and agree any requests for 
support.

d) That Cabinet note that there may be future requests to support UASC as 
further clarity is provided on the position regarding UASC in Europe. 

e) That Cabinet note the information regarding the Asylum Dispersal 
Scheme.

f) That Cabinet agree to the funding being made available for the 
resettlement of Syrian Refugees being ring fenced within a dedicated 
cost centre in adult social care to provide support to this group of people 
over the 5 year term of the funding.

REPORT

3.  Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

Equalities and Human Rights

3.1 Support to refugees and asylum seekers of all ages is a National and 
International challenge to assist people displaced through war and 
conflict in their home countries.

a) Refugees

The UK has agreed to support 20,000 Syrian refugees through the 
UNHCR Repatriation Scheme to relocate to the UK on a 5 year 
Humanitarian Visa.  This status as a refugee enables the individual to 
have access to housing, welfare benefits, health, education and work in 
paid employment.

The Government is providing funding to Local Authorities and Clinical 
Commissioning Groups to support the 5 year resettlement programme 
through the overseas aid budget and other funding streams.  

Local Authorities are expected to use this funding to provide meet and 
greet support at the airport of arrival, appropriate housing, and 12 
months of support, interpretation and translation services and English 
language classes. The funding is also to be used to meet any non-
complex social care needs.



b) Asylum Seekers

Asylum seekers would be supported through a regional contract 
commissioned by Central Government as part of the Asylum Dispersal 
Scheme.

Shropshire is not currently part of this scheme although there is growing 
pressure from the regional authorities in the West Midlands that the 
dispersal should be more equally shared across all local authorities due 
to the large numbers of asylum seekers in the UK.

Asylum seekers will have no status in the UK until their request for 
asylum has been heard.  During the period from arrival through to 
outcome of the asylum status decision they will be supported and 
housed by a national provider who will identify, obtain and manage 
accommodation and provide a basic subsistence allowance. Asylum 
seekers will have access to health care and education but will not have 
the right to work or to benefits through the welfare benefits system.

Local Authorities will not receive any additional funding should Asylum 
seekers be placed in their local authority area.

c) Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children (UASC) dispersed from Kent
    County Council
 

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children are treated as Looked After 
Children (LAC) and are entitled to access services and education as UK 
Looked After Children.

Each UK local authority has been asked to consider accepting young 
people from Kent who have received around 2000 young 
unaccompanied people as child asylum seekers.

d) Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children (UASC) currently in Europe

Further guidance is awaited on this group of young people and how local 
authorities may be required to support.  

Engagement and Consultation

3.2 The West Midlands Strategic Migration Partnership (WMSMP) are co-
ordinating the acceptance of Syrian refugees to the West Midlands and 
maintaining regular contact with the Home Office.

The WMSMP have held two engagement events with West Midlands 
local authorities and officers and Councillors from Shropshire Council 
have attended these.  Both events have provided the opportunity for 
discussion and Question and Answer sessions with officers from local 
authorities with previous experience in supporting Syrian refugee 
resettlement, experienced support providers such as Refugee Action, 
representatives from the Home Office and most recently the Minister with 
responsibility for Syrian refugee resettlement.



The WMSMSP is also the lead body for Home Office contact regarding 
the Asylum Dispersal scheme and their role is extending to supporting 
Local Authorities in responding to the requests for UASC support. 
Shropshire has had one meeting with WMSMP regarding the Asylum 
Dispersal scheme.

 The West Midlands ADCSS are in contact with both Kent Local Authority 
and WMSMP regarding UASC.

Shropshire has maintained a continual dialogue with local citizens 
regarding refugees and asylum seekers through its web site 
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/syrian-refugee-support/. The many offers 
of support from the general public have been collated and will be shared 
with the organisation appointed to support Syrian refugee resettlement 
in Shropshire.

Regular media and press release communications are being issued by 
the Council providing regular updates on our progress in Shropshire.  
Additionally officers are meeting local support groups who have offered 
to extend their support to Refugee arrivals in Shropshire.

The Cross Party Working group consists of Councillors from across all 
the political parties and representatives from the Voluntary and 
Community sector (VCS) Shropshire CCG, Police, Fire service and 
Public Health.

4.  Financial Implications

Refugees

4.1 Initial funding guidance received in 2015 has been recently revised 
following consultation with Councils who have had significant 
experience in resettling Refugees.

4.2 The Funding assists with costs incurred by Local Authorities in 
providing support to refugees.  Education and Health Funding will flow 
through the normal per capita funding routes.

4.3 In year one funding will be from the Overseas Development Budget to 
fund costs for Syrian refugees on a per person per tariff basis.  The 
year one tariff is £8520 for direct local authority costs.  There is also 
additional support for complex educational and medical needs 
allocated on a case by case basis.  The refugee will also be able to 
access welfare benefits and other public services.

4.4 In years 2 to 5 the costs borne by the local authority are calculated on 
a per person tariff.  It will be paid to local authorities as an un-ring-
fenced grant to an assist with costs incurred in supporting refugees.  
The local authority may determine the best use of the funds to support 
the refugees in their area and could include access to English language 

https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/syrian-refugee-support/


training, specific family support or support for local integration 
initiatives.

4.5 Existing funding mechanisms will be used to provide funding for 
schools and health services required by refugees.

Funding in years 2 to 5 is on a tapering basis as follows:

Year 2 tariff is £5,000

Year 3 tariff is £3,700

Year4 tariff is £2,300

Year 5 tariff is £1,000

4.6 In addition there is a national extreme cases fund that can be accessed 
on a case by case basis which is worth 15% of the overall tariff costs 
each year.  For the period 2016/17 to 2019/20 it is estimated that this will 
be £16.5 million.

 Asylum Seekers 

There is no additional funding support for Local Authorities.  Should the Asylum 
Dispersal scheme be extended to Shropshire it will be important that we have 
absolute clarity on what the appointed provider should be providing under their 
contract.

5.  Background

Syrian Refugees

5.1 The Syrian refugee resettlement programme has been running for some 
time focusing on women, children and the most vulnerable. The UK 
Government has pledged to repatriate 20,000 refugees through the 
UNHCR repatriation programme. (For clarity 20,000 refugees relates to 
individuals not families, a typical family unit is 6).

5.2 There have been concerns expressed by local authorities involved in 
taking the first cohorts of people regarding potential ongoing health and 
social care costs associated with the previous cohort, due to their level 
of need and vulnerability.   However this is now reduced as a typical 
cohort to any LA would be 80/20 split with 20% requiring the most 
complex health and social care support.

5.3 Previous resettlement has typically meant arrivals at regional airports, 
this will change to charter flights into one or two main airports with LA’s 
arranging onward coach transfer direct to local accommodation.  The 
emphasis is on immediate settlement into local communities with no 
“holding “accommodation and Shropshire is developing its plans based 
on this with “pre and post arrival” sections of the action plan being 
developed.  

5.4 Health screening, matching to accommodation, biometrics, and security 
screening, health checks and vaccinations, resettlement and integration 
training (what to expect in the UK) and matching to urban/rural areas 



occurs out of the UK.  We will be able to   refuse an allocated refugee if 
we are unable to meet their needs.  Primarily refugees will be matched 
to accommodation availability.

5.5 Resettlement guidance has been made available and this was updated 
in March 2015 which has been confirmed as the most current guidance.  

 Asylum Dispersal

5.6 This was set out in a letter to the Authority on 24 August 2015. This is a 
separate area to Syrian refugee resettlement. 

5.7 At a West Midlands Strategic Migration Partnership meeting (WMSMP) 
in autumn 2015 information was provided about the asylum dispersal 
scheme.

5.8 This included a key message that the Home Office have concluded that 
the current geography of asylum dispersal needs to be widened with all 
LA’s expected to co-operate with asylum seeker dispersal at some point.    

5.9 Asylum dispersal is supported by the Government through the 
appointment of regional providers.   To put Asylum seeking into context  
the Asylum and Immigration Act 1999, and its provisions, was introduced 
with the intention of sharing the impact of dispersals of asylum seekers 
across the UK and to ease the over reliance on any one area.   Seven 
Local Authorities have supported asylum dispersal within the West 
Midlands region since its introduction in 2000, engaging positively with 
the Home Office and its providers to find appropriate accommodation 
solutions. 

5.10 The Home Office will support any local authority areas identified as 
having suitable housing markets and who indicate a willingness to assist 
to develop solutions that are suitable to their local area.   Home Office 
funding covers the cost of housing, subsistence for asylum seekers and 
some wider ancillary services.

6.0 What’s happening in Shropshire?

6.1 A range of offers of support have been received from the public and 
community groups, these range from the offer of accommodation in a 
person’s own home, to translation services as well as practical support 
and collection of goods for distribution. 

6.2 A universal mail box has been set up and published to manage 
correspondence.  refugeesshropshire@shropshire.gov.uk  this has a 
standard message confirming response time to queries (3 days), 
thanking people for offers of support and signposting to other 
opportunities for people to offer help, practical support and make 
donations. 

mailto:refugeesshropshire@shropshire.gov.uk


6.3 Accommodation is also being identified and to date we have received 3 
positive offers of accommodation in the Oswestry areas from a private a 
sector landlord.  We will develop our first offer to the Home Office based 
on this accommodation.

6.4 We have also completed a procurement process to identify a support 
provider able to meet the resettlement requirements and provide the 
required support for 12 months, interpretation services, meet/ greet and 
transfer services and undertake Home Office liaison and complete 
returns as required.  The contract negotiations are currently being 
concluded.

6.5 Subject to Home Office approval and acceptance of our now firm offer, 
(previously we have pledged our support), we anticipate arrivals of 
refugees in Shropshire sometime in April or possibly early May 2016.

7. Conclusion 

7.1 Shropshire is now well placed to accept the first small cohort of refugees 
to the County.  The cross party working group have met on a 2 weekly 
basis to develop plans and engage with partners and stakeholders.

7.2 The support from the Public has been both supportive and generous and 
there are now a number of small groups that have established 
themselves to assist refugees both in Shropshire and also overseas.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor Mal Price  

Local Member
All – this is a Countywide matter 

Appendices




	Agenda
	6 Redesign of Visitor Information Services in North West Shropshire
	7 Application by Burford and Tenbury Wells [Malvern Hills District Council] Parish Councils to be considered as a Neighbourhood Plan Area
	8 The Provision and Support to Refugees and Asylum Seekers in Shropshire

